
 
 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 

Issue Date:  January 26, 2018 
By Texas Department of Transportation 

Aviation Division 
 

TxDOT CSJ No. 4218AVNSAMC 
 

Item 1: 
Please see the attached Sign-In Sheet for the Presolicitation Meeting held January 24, 2018, 10:00 a.m. at 
TxDOT Aviation, Room 107.  
 
Item 2: 
Please see responses to questions that address and clarify specifications published in the Request for 
Qualifications (RFQ): 
 
Question 1:  Are firms prohibited from contacting TxDOT staff for all projects or just this RFQ during the 
open solicitation period?  Answer:  Firms are prohibited from contacting TxDOT Staff during the open 
solicitation period regarding this project only. 
 
Question 2:  Is the selected firm eliminated from responding to other TxDOT Aviation solicitations?  
Answer:  No. 
 
Question 3:  If the prime engineer is certified DBE or HUB, will that count towards any DBE or HUB goal 
that is created in specific work authorizations?  Answer:  Yes. 
 
Question 4:  The Notice to Consultants says that only the Engineer’s resume should be submitted – does 
that mean we should not provide resumes and qualifications on the AVN-550 for geotechnical, 
construction materials testing, and RPRs?  Answer:  Yes.  TxDOT Aviation will select based on a firm 
submitting qualifications for one licensed professional engineer that will act as Project Manager for that 
firm.  Do not submit any potential team members’ qualifications.  A firm may provide information in the 
technical approach to illustrate how the licensed professional engineer effectively uses resources within 
the firm to meet the specifications of the program. 
 
Question 5:  Is there going to be assistance to get new firms onto eGrants for submitting the response?  
Answer:  Responses for this solicitation will not be submitted through eGrants.   
 



Question 6: Will there be pre-bid meetings for the construction phase?  Answer:  TxDOT has not planned 
to conduct pre-bid meetings, but if necessary, one pre-bid meeting for each bid package in the program 
will be conducted at the TxDOT Aviation office in Austin, Texas. 
 
Question 7:  Will these airport projects preclude firms from being awarded future scope rehabilitation 
work from already existing 5-year scope opportunities?  Answer:  The Sponsor and TxDOT, acting as 
Sponsor’s Agent, will decide the professional services selection process for the projects.   
 
Question 8:  Will geotechnical, survey, or RPR services ever be needed?  Answer:  Geotechnical and survey 
services will not be needed. RPR services will be awarded under a separate TxDOT Aviation contract. 
 
Question 9:  Will P-631 be the only asphalt specification?  Answer:  No. Specifications will be based on FAA 
approved rehabilitation materials. It is anticipated that P-631 will be the default specification. 
 
Question 10:  Will projects be funded by federal and state grant funds with Sponsor matches?  Answer:  
Yes. The selected firm will execute an indefinite deliverable contract with TxDOT Aviation that will not be 
project specific or grant specific.  Firms will execute grant-specific work authorizations in eGrants, 
authorized by the legacy contract, for individual airport projects that may be either federally funded or 
state funded projects.   
 
Question 11:   The RFQ references rehabilitation, what if the runway also needs milling/overlay? Answer:  
That scope would be handled in a different project. 
 
Question 12:  Explain “the Agent may add or delete specific requirements.”  Answer:  The agent may 
increase or decrease areas for rehabilitation. 
 
Question 13:  What project name and project manager do we put on the AVN-550 response:  Answer:  
Project Name will be 4218AVNSAMC and the Project Manager will be Eusebio Torres. 
 
Question 14:  What are the number of projects and the budget?  Answer:  We do not have a budget for 
this opportunity and we anticipate the initial airport package  to be approximately 10 airport projects.  
That projection can change depending on our funding and Sponsor needs.  We may issue multiple 
packages as needed. 
 
Question 15:  Do you anticipate as many as 1,000 hours of schedule for the firm’s Project Manager?  
Answer:  We do not anticipate that each package of projects will require that level of effort. 
 
Question 16:  Will the construction delivery method be design/bid/build?  Answer:  Yes. 
 
Question 17:  For the 10 years of experience on the AVN-550, is that only for the licensed professional 
engineer or is that for the firm?  Answer:  Only the licensed professional engineer. 
 



Question 18:  How will airport projects be identified and have they been determined?  Answer:  Airports 
will be identified based on the routine TxDOT Aviation project selection, which includes consideration of 
funding sources and geographic location.  The airports have not yet been determined. 
 
Question 19:  Do you expect the firm’s Project Manager to make site visits?  Answer:  Yes. 
 
Question 20:  Can others attend the site visit?  Answer:  Yes. 
 
Question 21:  Will TxDOT have one Project Manager assigned to this contract?  Answer:  Yes. 
 
Question 22:  Will the licensed professional engineer sign and seal plans and specifications?  Answer:  Yes. 
 
Question 23:  When will kick-off of this project begin?  Answer:  We anticipate a kick-off period within 90-
120 days of the solicitation response date.  
 
Question 24:  What exactly does the 72-hour response time mean?  Answer:  We expect work to begin 
within 72 hours of executing a work authorization. 
 
Question 25:  What is the goal of this contract?  Answer:  Maximize procurement, contracting, and 
deliverables’ economies of scale for professional and construction services.  
 
Question 26:  Has this type of procurement and contracting been used before by TxDOT or by the Aviation 
Division?  Answer:  Yes.  TxDOT Aviation uses similar procurement and indefinite deliverable contracts for 
land acquisition services, environmental services, and survey services.   
 
Question 27:  Do you want the AVN-550 to include the firm’s capabilities to do design work?  Answer:  
please see answer to Question 4. 
 
Question 28:  How will the construction projects be phased?  How do you anticipate scheduling the 
contractor’s time and location priorities? Answer: The construction phasing plan will be developed by the 
licensed professional engineer. 
 
Question 29:  Will the construction contracts be based on unit prices or lump sum? Answer: The 
construction contract will be based on unit-prices from a competitive bid procurement process. 
 
Question 30: If the project engineer leaves the company does the engineering firm select another project 
engineer, or will the State re-advertise for another selection? Answer:  Engineer replacement during the 
contract term will require Agent’s prior written consent.  Any such replacements will be subject to the 
terms of the agreement. 
 
 








